




Town of Groveland 
    Office of the Town Administrator 

183 Main Street  
Groveland, Massachusetts 01834 

 

 
 

MEMO 
To: 

 
Board of Selectmen 

From: Rebecca Oldham, Town Administrator  
cc:  
Date: February 13, 2024 
Re: Pines Recreation Area Utility Field 1 and 2, Field Use Permit (#2024-FP7) 

 
Scott Chicarello on behalf of the Pentucket Youth Football League is looking to reserve the 
minor field at Shanahan Field from August 5, 2024 through November 15, 2024.  
 
The league anticipates approximately 100+ kids from 2nd to 8th grade this season with 4 
teams. 
 
Weekday practices are from 5pm to 8pm.  
 
The League will provide their Certificate of Insurance, and they will also provide the $200 
fee for the permit. If approved the permit will be #2024-FP7 and a letter of approval will be 
sent to the League notifying them of approval and include reminders for trash pickup and 
contacts for help with field maintenance, etc.  

 
The Board is being asked to approve Field Use Permit #2024-FP7 for the Pentucket Youth 
Football League to use the Pines Recreation Area Utility Field 1 and 2, from August 5, 
2024 through November 15, 2024 contingent upon receipt of the Certificate of Insurance 
and field use fee.  

 



Town of Groveland 
    Office of the Town Administrator 

183 Main Street  
Groveland, Massachusetts 01834 

 

 
 

MEMO 
To: 

 
Board of Selectmen 

From: Rebecca Oldham, Town Administrator  
cc:  
Date: February 22, 2024 
Re: Pines Recreation Area Pavilion Special Event and Use Permit (#2024-SP4) 

Megan Stephen from Cadence Sports on behalf of the Alzheimer’s Association is looking 
to reserve Elm Square for the Ride to End ALZ New England on June 1, 2024 from 8am to 
2:30pm.  
 
This will be the 28th annual Ride to End ALZ New England, a fully supported, one-day 
fundraising event on the beach with 14 miles of coastal riding. There would be two 10 x 10 
pop up tents and the group will be using the location as a rest stop and also using 
bathrooms. They will have porta potties on site.  
 
The organization will need their Certificate of Insurance, and they will also provide the fee 
for the permit of $200. If approved, the permit will be #2024-SP4 and a letter of approval 
will be sent notifying of approval and include reminders for trash pickup and contacts for 
help with the restrooms, etc.  

 
The Board is being asked to approve Special Event Permit #2024-SP4 for Alzheimer’s 
Association for the Ride to End ALZ New England to use Elm Park on June 1, 2024 from 
8am to 2:30pm contingent upon receipt of the permit fee.  

 

 

https://act.alz.org/site/TR?fr_id=17204&pg=entry


Town of Groveland 
    Office of the Town Administrator 

183 Main Street  
Groveland, Massachusetts 01834 

 

 
 

MEMO 
To: 

 
Board of Selectmen 

From: Rebecca Oldham, Town Administrator  
cc:  
Date: February 22, 2024 
Re: Little Red School House Property Use Permit (#2024-PP1) 

 
Sarah Farinato on behalf of the Daisy Troop at the Bagnall School is looking to use the 
lawn at the Little Red School House (24 Broad Street) on March 10, 2024 from 10am to 
2pm.  
 
The group will be selling cookies and will not need access to the building. The Police Chief 
has reviewed the request and does not have any concerns as long as traffic is not 
obstructed. Since the cookies are pre-packaged, there is no need for additional permitting 
from the Board of Health.  
 
The Board is being asked to approve Property Use Permit #2024-PP1 for the Daisy Troop 
to use the lawn at the Little Red School House (24 Broad Street) on March 10, 2024 from 
10am to 2pm.  

 

 



  

1 

 

Greater Amesbury Public Health Excellence Group  
Inter-Municipal Agreement (IMA)  

for the Public Health Excellence for Shared Services Grant 
  

This Intermunicipal Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”), is entered into by and 
between cities and/or towns of Amesbury, Georgetown, Groveland, Merrimac, Newbury, 
Newburyport, Rowley, and West Newbury, hereinafter referred to collectively as the 
“Municipalities,” and individually as a “Municipality,” and Amesbury, in its capacity as Host 
Agent of the Greater Amesbury Public Health Excellence Group, (hereinafter referred to as 
“Greater Amesbury PHE Group”) this ____ day _____ 2023, as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Amesbury was awarded a Public Health Excellence for Shared 
Services grant by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the “Grant Program”) to create a cross-
jurisdictional public health services sharing program consistent with the recommendations of the 
Special Commission on Local and Regional Public Health’s (SCLRPH) June 2019 Report; and 
 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Grant Program is to implement the recommendations 
made in the SCLRPH’s June 2019 Report by increasing local public health capacity through 
cross-jurisdictional shared services programs and agreements; and 
 

WHEREAS, each of the Municipalities offers public health services and resources, and 
desires to increase its capacity to provide said services and resources and improve regional 
public health and meet performance standards set by the Commonwealth by entering this 
Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Amesbury, entering into an agreement with the Commonwealth 

of Massachusetts governing its participation in the Grant Program, is willing and able to manage 
the administrative obligations of the Grant Program through its Director of Inspectional Services, 
who shall hereinafter be referred to as the “Program Manager”, and  

 
 WHEREAS each Municipality has authority to enter into this Agreement pursuant to 
M.G.L. c. 40, §4A; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the municipalities, in mutual consideration of the covenants 
contained herein, intending to be legally bound thereby, agree under seal as follows: 

 
1. The Public Health Services Collaborative.  There is hereby established a collaborative 

of the Municipalities to be known as the (“Greater Amesbury PHE Group”), which 
shall hereinafter be referred to as the “Collaborative.”  The Collaborative, acting by 
and through an Advisory board (“Advisory Board”) as established in Section 5 of this 
Agreement, and Shared Services Manager, supervised by the Program Manager will 
coordinate, manage, and direct the activities of the parties with respect to the subject 
matter of the Grant Program, this Agreement, and the agreement between the (City of 
Amesbury), and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, attached hereto as Exhibit A, 
the terms of which are expressly incorporated herein and shall bind all parties hereto, 
and any other programs and services related thereto.  The purpose of the 



  

2 

 

Collaborative is to design and implement a program by which the public health staff 
and resources of the Municipalities are consolidated and shared such that cross-
jurisdictional services, investigations, enforcement and data reporting may be carried 
out and the public health and safety of the Municipalities may be better protected (the 
“Shared Services Program”). 
 

2. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date set forth above and 
shall expire when the funds for the Grant Program are no longer available, or when 
terminated in accordance with this Agreement, but in no event shall the Term of this 
Agreement exceed twenty-five (25) years unless permitted by statute.  Nothing herein 
shall be interpreted to prevent the Municipalities from extending the term of this 
Agreement beyond the exhaustion of the Grant Funds with the written consent of all 
parties hereto.   

 
3. Lead Municipality. During the term of this Agreement, the (City of Amesbury), 

acting as the “Lead Municipality,” shall oversee the Grant Program and the shared 
services program provided for herein (the “Shared Services Program”).   

 
As the Lead Municipality, the (City of Amesbury) shall act for the Collaborative with 
respect to all grant applications to be submitted and gifts and grants received 
collectively by the Municipalities. The (City of Amesbury) shall act as the 
Municipalities’ purchasing agent pursuant to G.L. c. 7, §22B, for all contracts duly 
authorized by the Advisory Board, established pursuant to Section 5 of this 
Agreement, to be entered into collectively by the Municipalities.  Final approval of 
any such contract is subject to approval of the Advisory Board and appropriation by 
each Municipality, to the extent required. 
 

4. Shared Services Coordinator. The (City of Amesbury), as Lead Municipality, shall 
hire and employ a Shared Services Coordinator and through the Shared Services 
Coordinator and its Health Department, shall perform all necessary fiscal and 
administrative functions necessary to provide the services contemplated under this 
Agreement, and shall be the holder of all grant funds related to the Grant Program, 
and may retain up 15% of the funds received through the Grant Program for wages 
and resources related to the performance of such duties, in accordance with the Grant 
Program Scope of Services, attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein. The 
Shared Services Coordinator shall report to the Advisory Board and shall keep 
records of all funding and expenditures for review by the Board and provide periodic 
financial status updates. For the purposes of employment status and health, retirement 
and other benefits, and immunities and indemnification as provided by law, the 
Shared Services Coordinator and any participating Collaborative staff working on 
behalf of the Collaborative, or the Advisory Board shall be considered employees of 
(City of Amesbury) and shall be accorded all benefits enjoyed by other (City of 
Amesbury) employees within the same classification as they are or shall be 
established.   
 
 



  

3 

 

5. Advisory Board 
There shall be a Advisory Board which shall be convened not less than quarterly by 
the Advisory Board Chair/Co-Chairs.  

a. Composition: one member and one alternate, both appointed by the Board of 
Health from each municipality. One representative from each municipality 
shall be a full voting member whose term shall be as determined by each 
municipality’s local Board of Health. The voting member shall be a Board of 
Health member or designee of that municipality’s Board of Health. Each 
participating municipality shall also have a second representative who shall be 
an associate member and who may vote only when the full member is not in 
attendance. Each municipality shall maintain its individual local Board of 
Health, which shall retain its own legal authority and autonomy as provided 
by law. The Shared Services Coordinator will be a non-voting member of the 
Advisory Board; however, in the event of a tie would be permitted to cast a 
deciding vote. 

b. Voting: Each participating municipality shall be entitled to one vote on the 
Advisory Board. Every voting member shall have an equal voice in 
determining shared priorities, and services to be provided.  

c. Quorum:   A majority of the voting members of the Advisory Board shall 
constitute a quorum for the purposes of transacting business.  The Advisory 
Board may act by a simple majority of members present and voting unless 
otherwise provided herein. 

d. Roles and Responsibilities of the Advisory Board:  
1) Meet on a regular basis and at least quarterly. 
2) Develop annual and long-term goals for the Collaborative. 
3) Advise on Collaborative staff priorities. 
4) Collaborate in developing a sustainability plan for (Greater Amesbury 

PHE Group). 
5) Adopt any Collaborative-wide policies and recommended regulations. 
6) Review and provide recommendations on operating budgets. 
7) Assure compliance with all mandatory reporting requirements as 

proscribed by the Department of Public Health (“DPH”) and Office of 
Local and Regional Health (“OLRH”). 

8) Assure attendance at monthly or other grant holder meetings convened 
by DPH and OLRH. 

9) Review financial status and financial statements provided by the 
Shared Services Coordinator. 

10) Review and provide recommendations on reports from staff. 
11) Hire, evaluate and terminate staff.  

 
e. Meetings.  The Advisory Board shall meet no less than quarterly and may 

schedule additional meetings, as necessary.  All meetings shall be conducted 
in compliance with the Massachusetts Open Meeting Law M.G.L. c. 30A, §§ 
18-25 as may be amended from time to time if required.  

 



  

4 

 

6. Shared Services Program Participation. Each Municipality as part of this Agreement 
shall participate in the Shared Services Program as follows: 
 
a. Each Municipality will consent to the Collaborative’s duly-authorized agents and 

representatives exercising the powers provided for herein and by the Advisory 
Board within the boundaries of said Municipality and will direct its agents and 
employees to work in good faith with the Collaborative’s health agents, nurses, 
and any other employees the Collaborative may employ from time to time. 

 
b. Each Municipality will be a member of the Advisory Board as established 

pursuant to this Agreement, and appoint and maintain two Advisory Board 
representatives at all times.  

 
c. Each Municipality will use best efforts to ensure that a representative of the 

Municipality will attend all Advisory Board meetings (either in-person or via 
remote access) throughout the life of this Agreement. 

 
d. Each Municipality will use best efforts to ensure that a representative of the 

Municipality will attend all training sessions which are offered in conjunction 
with the Grant Program geared towards stakeholders under the Program, as 
required by the DPH or its representative. 

 
e. Each Municipality will assist in collecting the necessary data as agreed to by the 

Committee and pursuant to the data reporting policy established pursuant to 
Section 5 of this Agreement to help meet the goals of the Shared Services 
Program and the Grant Program.  The data collection provided for herein will 
include, but not be limited to, reporting to the Advisory Board, through the Shared 
Services Coordinator, public health outcomes and services related to the Shared 
Services Program and the Collaborative’s agents and nurses. 
 

f. Each Municipality will request from the appropriate legislative body 
appropriation for any services, costs and expenses associated with the 
Collaborative and not covered by the Grant Program.  Notwithstanding this 
provision or any other terms of this Agreement, no party shall be obligated to 
incur any financial cost above the amount made available herein through grants 
and gifts or other sources, unless the financial obligation is supported by an 
appropriation made in accordance with law.  
 

g. Each Municipality will help promote and market the Shared Services Program 
and its services within their community. 

 
7. Payment and Funding. Pursuant to G.L. c. 40, §4A, any funds received by the Shared 

Services Program, Advisory Board, or the (City of Amesbury) pursuant to this 
Agreement, shall be deposited with the treasurer of the (City of Amesbury) and held 
as a separate grant account and may be expended, with the approval of the Advisory 
Board, under the provisions of G.L. c. 34, §23 and G.L. c. 44, §53A, for contribution 



  

5 

 

toward the cost of the Shared Services Program and in compliance with established 
grant guidelines from grantors only. 
 
The Advisory Board may authorize a disbursement of funds for any shared 
contractor, salary, or wages consistent with the terms of this Agreement, and/or for 
any program, service or benefit that is consistent with the terms of this Agreement.   
 
Except for the 15% of Grant Program funding for administrative costs that the (City 
of Amesbury) may retain pursuant to Section 4 of this Agreement, a Municipality 
may draw on grant funds individually, with prior approval by the Advisory Board, 
and provided such funds are available, by submitting invoices to the Shared Services 
Coordinator for reimbursement from the funds, for expenditure consistent with the 
purposes of the Shared Services Program and applicable grant funding guidelines. 

 
The (City of Amesbury), as the holder of Grant Program funds, will pay the invoice 
within 30 days, subject to the availability of funds; provided, however, that the (City 
of Amesbury) shall not be obligated to supply any funding or incur any cost in excess 
of the amounts made available to the Advisory Board and the Shared Services 
Program through the Grant Program and/or any other and gifts, grants, or other 
sources appropriated for the purposes of this Agreement.  Individual municipal costs 
incurred outside the scope of this Agreement and specific to the needs of that 
Municipality will be borne solely by that Municipality.  Any funds contributed by the 
Grant Program shall only be used for shared public health services consistent with the 
purposes of this Agreement.    
 
Annually, the Advisory Board will develop and approve a public health services 
budget for contractual shared services.  Initially, these services are funded by a 3-year 
Public Health Excellence Grant from the Department of Public Health administered 
by the (City of Amesbury).  It is the intention of the (City of Amesbury) to seek 
additional grant funds to sustain these services but if that is unsuccessful, 
participating Municipalities will revisit this Agreement and determine whether they 
will allocate municipal funds to continue participation. The Shared Services 
Coordinator will provide each Municipality with sufficient notice to allow that 
Municipality’s funding authority to authorize any such expenditure. Until grant funds 
are expended, there will be no cost to participating municipalities. Execution of this 
Agreement does not obligate any other participating Municipality to fund the Grant 
Program and a mutually acceptable written contract amendment would be required to 
do so.   
 
Pursuant to G.L. c. 40, §4A, any party may, but shall not be required to, raise money 
by any lawful means to further the purposes of the Shared Services Program and any 
such funds shall be held by the (City of Amesbury) and expended pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement. 

 
8. Other Municipal Services. The Municipalities of the Collaborative may request the 

Advisory Board to add or remove associated services to be delivered as part of the 



  

6 

 

Shared Services Program, and such shall take effect only after this Agreement is so 
amended in writing and approved by each Municipality. The Municipalities are not 
limited exclusively to the Grant Program and are not required to use all services of 
the Grant Program. Municipalities may apply for other grants outside the 
Collaborative.  

The Collaborative through a vote of the Advisory Board may apply for other grants, 
opportunities, funds, and awards for shared services on behalf of the Municipalities. 
The Advisory Board must approve any and all grants or grant applications submitted 
as a Collaborative. The Advisory Board may appoint other Municipalities to act as 
host agencies for these other grant opportunities and the Municipalities agree that this 
Agreement shall be amended to account for any associated grant terms and 
conditions.   
 

9. Employees. Employees and personnel of each Municipality providing services 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be deemed employees of their respective 
Municipalities, and not shared services employees or employees of any other 
Municipality.  An employee who performs services, pursuant to this Agreement on 
behalf of another member Municipality, shall be deemed to be acting within the scope 
of his current Municipal job duties at all times and remain an employee of the 
employee’s Municipality for insurance coverage purposes. Said Municipal employee 
shall retain all accrued benefits and shall be subject to standard hiring and personnel 
practices of such municipality. 

 
10. Indemnification & Insurance. To the extent permitted by law, each Municipality shall 

defend, indemnify, and hold the other Municipalities harmless from and against any 
and all claims, demands, liabilities, actions, causes of action, costs and expenses, 
including attorney’s fees, arising out of the indemnifying Municipality’s acts or 
omissions, breach of this Agreement, or the negligence or misconduct of the 
indemnifying Municipality or its agents or employees.  In entering into this 
Agreement, no Municipality waives any governmental immunity or statutory 
limitation of damages. Should the Collaborative or a Municipality incur any liabilities 
on behalf of the Grant Program such as unemployment insurance or other unforeseen 
expenses, each of the member municipalities will proportionally share in the liability 
for such expenses. 

The (City of Amesbury) and the Municipality shall obtain and keep in full force and 
effect public liability insurance in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 
combined single limit for bodily injury, death and property damage arising out of any 
one occurrence, protecting the other party against all claims for bodily injury, Three 
Million Dollars ($3,000,000) aggregate, death, or property damage arising directly or 
indirectly out of the Indemnification Provisions of this Agreement.  

 



  

7 

 

11. Entrance. Any municipality may petition the Collaborative to join this Agreement to 
the extent permitted by the grants.  In order to approve the addition of a new entity to 
the Agreement for the Grant Program requires the approval of the Massachusetts 
Department of Public Health and no less than a two-thirds vote of the Advisory 
Board. 

12. Withdrawal. Any Municipality other than the Lead Municipality, by votes of its 
respective authorizing, may withdraw from this Agreement with the provision of at 
least three (3) months prior written notice to the Lead Municipalities. Withdrawal 
requires the vote of both the Select Board and the Board of Health. Upon such 
withdrawal, the Shared Services Coordinator shall prepare full statements of 
outstanding unpaid financial obligations under this Agreement and present the same 
to the terminating Municipality for payment within thirty (30) days thereafter.  To the 
extent permitted by the Grant Program and its agreement with the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts pursuant thereto, the Lead Municipality, by a vote of its Select Board 
and Board of Health, may withdraw from this Agreement upon the provision of at 
least three (3) months prior written notice to the participating Municipalities and the 
Advisory Board, and a new Lead Municipality shall thereafter be designated by the 
Advisory Board, by a vote of the representatives of the remaining parties.  Prior to the 
effective date of its withdrawal, the Lead Municipality shall transfer all funds held 
pursuant to this Agreement to the new Lead Municipality as designated by the 
Advisory Board any pay any outstanding unpaid financial obligations under this 
Agreement within thirty (30) days thereafter.  Any Municipality may withdraw at the 
end of any fiscal year in which the Municipality’s legislative body has not 
appropriated funds sufficient to support that Municipality’s continued participation in 
the subsequent fiscal year if such funds are required. In such an event, the 
Municipality shall give as much notice to the other Municipalities to this Agreement 
as the circumstances allow. The Advisory Board, by vote of the remaining members, 
has the authority to reallocate grant resources or other outside funding that would 
have been allocated to the withdrawing Municipality. Any data collected from the 
terminating Municipality through a Shared Services Program project, service, or 
program will remain with the Advisory Board for analysis by the Shared Services 
Coordinator and the Advisory Board. 

13. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by a vote of a majority of the 
Municipalities’ representatives of the Advisory Board, at a meeting of the Advisory 
Board called for that purpose; provided that the representative’s vote has been 
authorized by the Municipality’s Chief Executive Officer.  Any termination vote shall 
not be effective until the passage of at least sixty (60) days and until the 
Municipalities have agreed to an equitable allocation of all remaining costs, expenses 
and assets. 

 



  

8 

 

14. Conflict Resolution. The Advisory Board may hold additional meetings to discuss 
and resolve any conflicts that may arise including, but not limited to, disagreements 
regarding the needs of each Municipality, administration of the shared services 
programs, the terms of this Agreement, data reporting and any other matters the 
parties deem necessary. 

 
15. Financial Safeguards. The Lead Municipality shall maintain separate, accurate, and 

comprehensive records of all services performed for each of the Municipalities, and 
all contributions received from the Municipalities. 

16. Assignment. None of the Municipalities shall assign or transfer any of its rights or 
interests in or to this Agreement, or delegate any of its obligations hereunder, without 
the prior written consent of all of the other Municipalities. 

 
17. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only in writing pursuant to an 

affirmative vote of all Municipalities’ (Chief Executive Officer/Appointing 
Authority). 

 
18. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, or if any such term is so held 
when applied to any particular circumstance, such invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement, or affect the 
application of such provision to any other circumstances, and the remaining 
provisions hereof shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
19. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 
 

20. Headings. The paragraph headings herein are for convenience only, are no part of this 
Agreement, and shall not affect the interpretation of this Agreement. 

 
21. Non-Discrimination. Neither the Lead Municipality nor the Municipalities shall 

discriminate against any person because of race, color, religious creed, national 
origin, gender, ancestry, sexual orientation, age, handicap, gender identity, genetic 
information, military service, or any other protected class under the law with respect 
to admission to, access to, or operation of its programs, services, or activities. 

22. Notices. Any notice permitted or required hereunder to be given or served on any 
Municipality shall be in writing signed in the name of or on behalf of the 
Municipality giving or serving the same.  Notice shall be deemed to have been 
received at the time of actual receipt of any hand delivery or three (3) business days 
after the date of any properly addressed notice sent by mail as set forth below:  

City of Amesbury: 
Mayor Kassandra Gove       



  

9 

 

govek@amesburyma.gov 
978-388-8121 
Amesbury City Hall 
62 Friend St.  
Amesbury, MA 01913 
 
Town of Georgetown: 
(contact name) 
(email) 
(phone) 
(address) 
 
Town of Groveland: 
(contact name) 
(email) 
(phone) 
(address) 

 
Town of Merrimac: 
(contact name) 
(email) 
(phone) 
(address) 

 
Town of Newbury: 
(contact name) 
(email) 
(phone) 
(address) 

 
City of Newburyport: 
(contact name) 
(email) 
(phone) 
(address) 
 
Town of Rowley: 
(contact name) 
(email) 
(phone) 
(address) 

 
Town of West Newbury: 
(contact name) 
(email) 
(phone) 

mailto:govek@amesburyma.gov


  

10 

 

(address) 
 

 
 
23. Complete Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

Municipalities concerning the subject matter hereof, superseding all prior agreements 
and understandings.  There are no other agreements or understandings between the 
Municipalities concerning the subject matter hereof.  Each Municipality 
acknowledges that it has not relied on any representations by any other Municipality 
or by anyone acting or purporting to act for another Municipality or for whose actions 
any other Municipality is responsible, other than the express, written representations 
set forth herein. 

 
WITNESS OUR HANDS AND SEALS as of the first date written above. 
 
 
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Mayor, City of Amesbury     Date 
  
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Board of Health, City of Amesbury     Date 
 
 
 
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Select Board, Town of Georgetown    Date 
  
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Board of Health, Town of Georgetown   Date 
 
 
 
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Select Board, Town of Groveland    Date 
  
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Board of Health, Town of Groveland    Date 
 
 
 
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Select Board, Town of Merrimac    Date 
  
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Board of Health, Town of Merrimac    Date 
 



  

11 

 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Select Board, Town of Newbury    Date 
  
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Board of Health, Town of Newbury    Date 
 
 
 
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Mayor, City of Newburyport     Date 
  
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Board of Health, City of Newburyport   Date 
 

 
 

_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Select Board, Town of Rowley    Date 
  
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Board of Health, Town of Rowley    Date 
 
 
 
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Select Board, Town of West Newbury   Date 
  
_____________________________________            ______________________________ 
Board of Health, Town of West Newbury   Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

12 

 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
Grant agreement between the Greater Amesbury Public Health Excellence Group and the 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts – to be attached  



  

13 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

The scope of services the Greater Amesbury Public Health Excellence Group shall 
provide the following services in coordination with member municipalities: 
 
TO BE FILLED IN  



NAD_1983_StatePlane_Massachusetts_Mainland_FIPS_2001

Feet1580 1: 1,897316 316

Town of Groveland

Projection: © Merrimack Valley Planning Commission

02/22/2024

Data Sources:  Produced by Merrimack Valley Planning Commission (MVPC) 

using data provided by the Town of Groveland & MassIT/MassGIS.

MVPC AND THE TOWN OF GROVELAND MAKES NO WARRANTIES, 

EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, CONCERNING THE ACCURACY, COMPLETENESS, 

RELIABILITY, OR SUITABILITY OF THESE DATA. THE TOWN OF GROVELAND 

AND MVPC DOES NOT ASSUME ANY LIABILITY ASSOCIATED WITH THE 

USE OR MISUSE OF THIS INFORMATION.

Legend
MVPC Boundary Parcels Roads Interstate Major Road Local Road 

Easements Hydrographic Features Streams Wetlands



 

 

TOWN OF GROVELAND, MASSACHUSETTS 
  
 

MANAGEMENT LETTER 
 
  

JUNE 30, 2023 
 



 

 

 
 
To the Honorable Board of Selectmen  
Town of Groveland, Massachusetts  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Groveland, 
Massachusetts as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, (except for the Groveland Municipal Light Department 
which is as of and for the year ending December 31, 2022) in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Town’s internal control over financial reporting 
(internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. 
 
However, during our audit we became aware of other matters that we believe represent opportunities for 
strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency. The memorandum that accompanies this letter 
summarizes our comments and suggestions concerning those matters. 
 
We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed 
these comments and suggestions with various Town personnel and will be pleased to discuss them in further 
detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing the 
recommendations. 
 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management of the Town of Groveland, 
Massachusetts, and others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 
 

 
 
 
January 11, 2024



 

 

TOWN OF GROVELAND, MASSACHUSETTS 
 

MANAGEMENT LETTER 
 

JUNE 30, 2023 
 

CONTENTS 
 
               Page 

 

Comments and Recommendations ...................................................................................................................... 1 

Bank Reconciliations ....................................................................................................................................... 2 

Fraud Risk Assessment .................................................................................................................................. 2 

Documentation of Internal Controls ................................................................................................................. 3 

 
 



 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMENTS AND RECCOMENDATIONS 
 
Comments and Recommendations



 

2 
 

BANK RECONCILIATIONS  
Bank Reconciliations  
Comment 
 
One of the most effective internal controls to detect and correct errors in a timely manner is a timely process of 
reconciling bank balances to the cash book in the Treasurer’s office and then comparing those reconciled 
Treasurer’s cash book balances to the Town’s general ledger. Performing these monthly reconciliations helps to 
ensure that errors are detected and corrected timely and that records are complete and accurate.  
 
The Town maintains approximately 50 bank accounts, most of which are reconciled to the Town Treasurer’s cash 
book on a timely basis. However, we have previously noted for a number of years, that two of the Town’s 
accounts had unreconciled differences between the bank balance and the book balance maintained by the 
Treasurer. 
 
These unreconciled variances were the result of significant turnover in key financial positions, and the current 
members of the Town’s financial team had been working to reconcile the accounts to a consistent unidentified 
variance.    
 
Current Status 
 
Resolved – In 2023, the Town established consistent reconciliation procedures and the previous year’s variances 
were isolated and ultimately adjusted off the Town’s ledger balances.  
 
 
FRAUD RISK ASSESSMENT 
Fraud Risk Assessment 
Comment 
 
The opportunity to commit and conceal fraud exists where there are assets susceptible to misappropriation and 
inadequate controls to prevent or detect the fraud. To address this risk, we recommend that the Town perform a 
risk assessment to identify, analyze, and manage the risk of asset misappropriation. Risk assessment, including 
fraud risk assessment, is one element of internal control. Thus, ideally, the Town’s internal control should include 
performance of this assessment, even though our annual financial statement audits include consideration of 
fraud. 
 
The fraud risk assessment can be informal and performed by a management-level individual who has extensive 
knowledge of the Town that might be used in the assessment. Ordinarily, the management-level individual would 
conduct interviews or lead group discussions with personnel who have extensive knowledge of the Town, its 
environment, and its processes. The fraud risk assessment process should consider the Town’s vulnerability to 
misappropriation of assets.  
 
When conducting the self-assessment, questions such as the following can be considered: 
 

 What individuals have the opportunity to misappropriate assets?  These are individuals who have access 
to assets susceptible to theft and to records that can be falsified or manipulated to conceal the theft. 
 

 Are there any known pressures that would motivate employees with the opportunity to misappropriate 
assets?  Pressures may relate to financial stress or dissatisfaction. In assessing whether these pressures 
may exist, the assessor should consider whether there is any information that indicated potential 
financials stress or dissatisfaction of employees with access to assets susceptible to misappropriation.  



 

3 
 

 
 What assets of the Town are susceptible to misappropriation? 

 
 Are there any know internal control weaknesses that would allow misappropriation of assets to occur and 

remain undetected? 
 

 How could assets be stolen?  Assets can be stolen in many ways besides merely removing them from the 
premises. For example, cash can be stolen by writing checks to fictitious employees or vendors and 
cashing them for personal use.  

 
 How could potential misappropriation of assets be concealed?  Because many frauds create accounting 

anomalies, the perpetrator must hide the fraud by running through an adjustment to another account. 
Generally, fraud perpetrators may use accounts that re not closely monitored. 
 

Current Status 
 
Unresolved - The Town has not yet developed or implemented a formal fraud risk assessment. 
 
Continuing Recommendation 

 
We continue to recommend that management develop and implement a fraud risk assessment program to 
identify, analyze, and manage the risk of asset misappropriation. Department heads should provide information 
detailing any activities within their departments that may lend themselves to potential fraud, i.e., identification of 
idle cash or collections that don’t get turned over daily or instances where internal controls over Town assets are 
not in place or are not functioning as intended. 
 
 
DOCUMENTATION OF INTERNAL CONTROLS 
Documentation of Internal Controls 
Comment 
 
In December 2013, the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) issued Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) in an effort to (1) 
streamline guidance for federal awards while easing the administrative burden and (2) to strengthen oversight 
over the expenditure of federal funds and to reduce the risks of waste, fraud and abuse. 
The Uniform Guidance supersedes and streamlines requirements from eight different federal grant circulars 
(including OMB Circular A-133) into one set of guidance. Local governments were required to implement the new 
administrative requirements and cost principles for all new federal awards and to additional funding to existing 
awards made after December 26, 2014 (fiscal year 2016). 
 
In conformance with Uniform Guidance, the non-Federal entity must: (a) Establish and maintain effective internal 
control over the Federal award that provides reasonable assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing the 
Federal award in compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal 
award.  
 
These internal controls should be in compliance with guidance in ‘‘Standards for Internal Control in the Federal 
Government’’ issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (the Green Book) and the ‘‘Internal Control 
Integrated Framework’’, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 
(COSO).  
 



 

4 
 

Management is responsible for internal controls and to see that the entity is doing what needs to be done to meet 
its objectives. Governments have limited resources and constraints on how much can be spent on designing, 
implementing, and conducting systems of internal control. The COSO Framework can help management consider 
alternative approaches and decide what action it needs to take to meet its objectives. Depending on 
circumstances, these approaches and decisions can contribute to efficiencies in the design, implementation, and 
conduct of internal control. With the COSO Framework, management can more successfully diagnose issues and 
assert effectiveness regarding their internal controls, and, for external financial reporting, help avoid material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. 
 
The COSO internal control framework must incorporate the 5 major components of internal control, while 
addressing the 17 principles of internal control that support the COSO framework. Refer to www.coso.org for 
articles describing the 5 components and their 17 principles in detail.  
 
Management should evaluate and assess the government’s internal control system to determine whether: each of 
the five essential elements of a comprehensive framework of internal control is present throughout the 
organization; whether each element addresses all of the associated principles; and whether all five elements 
effectively function together. 
 
Current Status 
 
Partially Unresolved – The Town is in the process of drafting an internal control document using the COSO 
Internal Control Framework. The Town plans to finalize this document in 2024. 
 
Continuing Recommendation 
 
We recommend management follow the best practice for establishing and documenting their internal control 
system using the COSO Internal Control Framework.  







































From: Sean Reardon
To: Debbie Eagan; Neil Harrington; Mayor Gove; Carol McLeod - Finance (X3040); StephenC@ipswichma.gov;

opacheco@georgetownma.gov; Tracy Blais; Rebecca Oldham; Town Manager; mayor@cityofhaverhill.com
Cc: Christine Jackson; Andrew Levine
Subject: Whittier Task Force
Date: Wednesday, February 21, 2024 1:14:43 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
image004.png

Good Afternoon Local Leaders,
 
I hope everyone is having a great week. I wanted to bring us all together to kick off this Whittier Task
Force idea. My hope was to have two people from each community: the 11 of us on this email and
then a representative from each city council or select board. I am going to send a similar email to
them as well to get this on their radar. I know this will be a long process. Anything that this group
comes up with will eventually have to go through each community’s board for approval. I have
already spoken about this group with our City Council President Ed Cameron who is eager to
participate. As you know Newburyport has been working with law firm Pierce Atwood to examine
the 1967 Regional Agreement and compile a list of possible amendments to that agreement. I will
have a document to share from them when we meet.  
 

I am proposing that we meet on Wednesday, March 4th at 2pm here at City Hall in our Auditorium.
Please let me know if that does not work for you. My idea for a first agenda is as follows:
 
Welcome/Introduction on group and purpose
Round table discussion around the vote
Next steps for Whittier including capital plan and ongoing communication
Opportunities around the agreement
Process for potential amendments
Next Steps
 
I look forward to meeting with you all, and please let me know what questions or concerns you may
have.
 
 
Respectfully,
 
Sean Reardon
Mayor
City of Newburyport
60 Pleasant St.
PO Box 550
Newburyport, MA 01950
978-465-4411
Sign up for e-alerts and general City information on CityofNewburyport.com
 

mailto:SReardon@CityofNewburyport.com
mailto:debbie@townofrowley.org
mailto:nharrington@salisburyma.gov
mailto:govek@amesburyma.gov
mailto:cmcleod@townofmerrimac.com
mailto:StephenC@ipswichma.gov
mailto:opacheco@georgetownma.gov
mailto:administrator@townofnewbury.org
mailto:ROldham@Grovelandma.com
mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org
mailto:mayor@cityofhaverhill.com
mailto:CJackson@CityofNewburyport.com
mailto:ALevine@CityofNewburyport.com
https://www.cityofnewburyport.com/subscribe






        
 
 

 
 

Disclaimer

This communication from the City of Newburyport is intended only for the individual or entity to which it is
addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution
or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited.  If you received this e-mail in error, please notify the
sender immediately and destroy this e-mail and all copies of it.  Thank you.  

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts considers most electronic communications to and from public
employees to be public records and disclosable under the Massachusetts Public Records Law and its
implementing regulations.

https://www.facebook.com/newburyportofficial/
https://www.instagram.com/cityofnewburyport/?hl=en
https://twitter.com/NewburyportGov
https://www.linkedin.com/company/city-of-newburyport










 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

Meeting Minutes  
Tuesday, January 2, 2024 

Groveland Town Hall 183 Main Street, Groveland, MA 01834 
 
This meeting was in-person and also broadcast live on Groveland Public Access, Channel 8, as well as 
through Zoom virtual meeting software for remote access. 
 
PRESENT:   Chair Daniel MacDonald, Acting Chair Kathleen Kastrinelis, Selectmen Edward Watson, 

Mark Parenteau, Jason Naves. 
  Rebecca Oldham, Town Administrator 
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER AT 6:30 P.M. – Acting Chair Kastrinelis called the meeting to order at 
6:30 pm and introduced the members of the Board of Selectman as well as the Town Administrator.  
Acting Chair Kastrinelis explained that Chair MacDonald was expected to join the meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Written submissions for public comment must be made before the start of the 
meeting per the Board of Selectmen’s Public Comment Policy amended November 13, 2017. 

• None 
DISCUSSION & POSSIBLE VOTE: 

1. Approve Field Use Permit for Essex Premier, Nicole Marisolo, for use of Shanahan Field for a 
soccer clinic July 22nd through August 2nd from 8am to 2pm.  

A motion was moved by Selectman Naves and seconded by Selectman Parenteau to 
approve the Field Use Permit for Essex Premier, Nicole Marisolo, for use of Shanahan 
Field for a soccer clinic July 22nd through August 2nd from 8am to 2pm.  Voted: 4-0.  One 
absent. 

2. Whittier Vocational Technical School Building Project, Selectmen Watson: 
Acting Chair Kastrinelis recused herself from the meeting; Selectman Naves took over the 
discussion. 
Selectman Watson reminded everyone of the vote taking place on Tuesday, January 23, 2024 
from 11:00 am until 7:00 pm; this is voting to approve a new building at Whittier Voke Tech.  
There is no early voting for this election.  Selectman Watson reported that when the 
Superintendent presented plans to the BOS, he had suggested having copies of the building plans 
available at the Library and the Town Hall in all eleven communities and that never happened – 
for transparency reasons Selectman Watson thought this would be a good idea and the 
Superintendent had agreed.   According to the Business Manager at Whittier Voke Tech for the 
average priced home in Groveland at $575,000, they are looking at an increase of about $264 
yearly for thirty years, however, according to the Board of Assessors, the average price is now 
higher than $575,000.  Selectman Naves noted the significant cost for extensive repairs that are 
needed at the current building. 

3. Personnel Policies & Procedures Manual, Town Administrator: 
Chair MacDonald joined the meeting and was present for this discussion. 
TA Oldham explained that Personnel Policies & Procedures have not been updated since 2005 
and a lot has changed in that time.  This was one of TA Oldham’s goals to review and update as 
needed and that is what is in front of the BOS tonight.  This will be posted for employees to 
review for ten days and then there will be a Public Hearing to allow for comments; the 
information has been sent out to the Department Heads.  Selectman Kastrinelis felt that this 
document being presented provides clarification for the employees. 



Groveland Board of Selectmen Meeting 
Tuesday, January 2, 2024 at 6:30PM 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
APPOINTMENTS OF THE BOARD:   

• None. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 
4. Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes November 20, 2023: 

A motion was moved by Selectman Kastrinelis and seconded by Selectman Naves to 
approve the Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes November 20, 2023.  Voted: 5-0. 

 
OLD OR UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

• Selectman Kastrinelis talked about comments she received in regards to the trash contract and the 
use of the overflow bags that are not being adhered to and asked the Board what they would like 
to do to enforce this.   Chair MacDonald suggested adding this to a future agenda. 

 
OTHER ITEMS NOT REASONABLY ANTICIPATED AT TIME OF POSTING: 

• Selectman Kastrinelis noted that there are reports of target practice being done at Center Street; 
not sure if this is in fact true but would like to ask the Police to add enforcement signage there.  

 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S TIME: 
TA Oldham reported:  

• The final budget book should be ready electronically on Friday. 
• Reminder that the vote is taking place on January 23, 2024 to approve moving forward with the 

MSBA; this vote is for the building and will not be for funding at this time that will be 
determined at a later date. 

 
SELECTMEN’S TIME & REPORTS Time to be used to make statements, propose future agenda 
items, or congratulate residents/teams on accomplishments; this time should not be used to initiate a 
discussion. 

• Chair MacDonald: will invite the Town Clerk to the next meeting to talk about the upcoming 
town elections. 

• Selectman Kastrinelis: asked about inviting the Fire to discuss ways to regionalize services.  
Would like to discuss changing the BOS to Select Board, this will be added to the next meeting 
agenda. 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 

5. Fiscal Year 2024 Fair Share Apportionment Letter 
6. City of Newburyport Whittier Info Night Flyer, January 9th at 6pm: 

• this is about the school building project. 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
A motion was moved by Selectman Kastrinelis and seconded by Selectman Parenteau to adjourn 
the meeting at 7:35 pm.  Voted: 5-0. 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Selectmen will be Tuesday, January 16, 2024, at 
6:30PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Katherine T. Ingram
 



From: Bartholomew, Justin
To: Town Manager; Rebecca Oldham; Carol McLeod - Finance
Cc: Jennifer Penney - Selectmen"s Office
Subject: Fwd: Tomorrow"s SC Meeting, 2/13
Date: Monday, February 12, 2024 2:01:39 PM

Carol (or Jennifer), Rebecca, and Angus,

Below is a message I just sent to the SC members regarding what would happen if
PRSD closes tomorrow.  Quick summary - if we close, we will postpone the meeting
until Tuesday, 2/27 @ 6PM (same location).  If you could share this with your
respective BoS and FinCom members, that would be great.

Thanks!
~ Justin

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Bartholomew, Justin <jbartholomew@prsd.org>
Date: Mon, Feb 12, 2024 at 1:59 PM
Subject: Tomorrow's SC Meeting, 2/13
To: SchoolCommittee <schoolcommittee@prsd.org>

Dear School Committee

In consultation with the Chair, we have agreed that if the district is closed tomorrow
(and it is trending in that direction), then we will postpone Tuesday's SC Meeting
(Public Budget Hearing) meeting until Tuesday, February 27th at 6PM.  In turn, that
means that we will either meet on Tuesday March 5th or Tuesday March 12th to vote
on the budget number (that can be a discussion for later).

If you have any questions, please call or text me!

~ Justin

The Right-To-Know Law provides that most e-mail communications, to or from School District employees
regarding the business of the School District, are government records available to the public upon request.
Therefore, this e-mail communication may be subject to public disclosure. This e-mail is intended solely for the
person or entity to which it is addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged information. Any review,
dissemination, copying, printing, or other use of this e-mail by persons or entities other that the addressee is
strictly prohibited. If you receive this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete the material
from any device.

mailto:jbartholomew@prsd.org
mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org
mailto:ROldham@Grovelandma.com
mailto:cmcleod@townofmerrimac.com
mailto:selectmen@townofmerrimac.com
mailto:jbartholomew@prsd.org
mailto:schoolcommittee@prsd.org









